WHITE’S HISTORY, GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

ELFORD is a pleasant village, upon a declivity on the north bank of the Tame, 4 ½ [miles] N. by W. of Tamworth; said to have derived its name from the great number of eels with which the river here formerly abounded.  Its parish comprises 468 inhabitants, and 1840 acres of highly cultivated land, most of which was an open common till 1766, when it was enclosed, and 240 acres allotted to the rectory in lieu of tithes.  Before the Norman conquest this manor belonged to Earl Algar.  In the reign of Henry III., it was held by William de Arderne, whose descendents continued to enjoy it till the marriage of Maud, sole heiress of Sir John Arderne, with Thomas, second son of Sir John Stanley, of Latham, carried it to that family. – By a succession of females, it passed, in like manner, to the families of Stanton, Smith, Huddleston, and Bowes.  After remaining for several generations with the latter, it devolved on the Hon. Craven Howard. The Hon. Mrs. Mary Howard is now lady of the manor and owner of most of the soil, and resides at ELFORD HALL, a handsome mansion, erected about 1758, and having pleasant grounds, and a fine avenue of young elms, planted by the late Hon. Fulke Greville Howard. The CHURCH (St. Peter) is a fine old building, in the pointed style of architecture; and in 1828, it was ornamented with an ancient stained glass window, brought from the continent, representing Christ turning water into wine.  It has also many antique monuments and effigies of the former lords of the manor.  The church was restored in 1848, and decorated with stained glass windows, encaustic tiles, etc., so that the interior has now a very handsome appearance.  The tower has six bells and a clock.  The rectory, valued in K.B. at £13. 6s. 8d., and now at £300, is in the patronate of the Hon. Mrs. Howard, and incumbency of the Rev. F. E. Paget, M.A., who has a good modern residence. A neat stone bridge crosses the Tame at Elford; and a little above it is a corn mill, formerly occupied by the late Robert Bage, who was born at Derby, in 1728, and wrote five popular novels.  Elford Lowe, on the summit of a hill, above one mile east of the village, is distinguished by a large oak tree; and in it were found, about 80 years ago, several human skeletons, a piece of a bayonet, and some other warlike utensils.  Opposite to it, at the distance of a mile, is another lowe, of smaller extent.  Both of them are evidently sepulchral, and were probably the burial places of the slain in some battle during the Saxon Heptarchy.  “These lowes are denominated by the common people Robin Hood’s shooting butts, from a belief, prevalent among them, that he sometimes practised here, and was able to throw an arrow from one to the other.”  The parishioners have the following Benefactions:- In 1614, the Rev. John Hill bequeathed land for the equal benefit of the poor and schoolmaster; and it is now let for about £27 per annum.  For the same uses, an annuity of 27 shillings was left by the Rev. William Sawrey, in 1792; and another of 9 shillings by the Rev. Thomas Moore.  The school has long been conducted on the national system; and each scholar pays 2s. 6d. per quarter. – Viscount Chetwynd and the rector of Elford are the acting trustees.  in 1810, Edward Astbury left the interest of £20, to be distributed by the rector to poor widows of Elford.  In the village also is a National School, supported chiefly by the Hon. Mrs. Howard.  This lady and the rector also support an Infant School, built in 1848.  The parish feast is on the first Sunday in July.  Comberford, a hamlet two miles S. of Elford is mostly in Tamworth parish. 

Hon. Mrs Mary Howard, Elford Hall

Baxter Thomas, butcher

Bell Mrs Susannah, Elford Lowe

Bourne Mrs A.M. and Misses

Clements Frederick, shoemaker

Davis George, gardener and parish clerk

Dunn Hannah, victualler Crown Inn

Gilbert Robert, shopkeeper

Levett Miss Ann and Theophilus, Esq., Elford House

Lowe Henry and Edward, corn millers

Mousley Miss P.

Pickering Mr Thomas

Paget Rev. Francis Edward, M.A., Rectory

Phuler Thomas, tailor, Post Office

Smith Elizabeth, shopkeeper

Spooner Abraham, shoemaker

Thacker Charles William, miller, Lowe

Thornton John, blacksmith

Turner Samuel, gardener

Carpenters

Bolton John

Gilbert John

Haden Thomas

Farmers

Bourne Robert, Park

Lowe Henry, Comberford House

May George Anderson, Park

Thacker Charles William

Walker W. Slater, Meer Pits

Wakefield John

Schools

Pickering Ann

Thomas Mary A.

Woolley Thomas

Wheelwrights

Williams James

Williams William

Post office
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